
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama 

 
Date: FRIDAY, 20 JANUARY 2017 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Christina Coker (Chairman) 

Marianne Fredericks (Deputy Chairman) 
Jeremy Simons 
Neil Constable 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Gemma Stokley  

tel. no.: 020 7332 1407 
gemma.stokley@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording 

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 
  
**N.B. THE FIRST 15 MINUTES OF THIS MEETING WILL TAKE THE FORM OF AN ‘IN 

CAMERA’ SESSION WITH COMMITTEE MEMBERS, THE INTERNAL  
AUDITOR AND THE TOWN CLERK ONLY PRESENT** 

 
Part 1 - Public Agenda 

 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 7 November 2016. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
4. MATTERS ARISING NOT COVERED ELSEWHERE ON THE AGENDA 
 
5. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS REPORT 
 Report of the Town Clerk.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
6. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 
 Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 14) 

 
7. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 
 Report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 15 - 24) 

 
8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
  



3 
 

Part 2 - Non Public Agenda 
 
11. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2016. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 25 - 30) 

 
12. NON-PUBLIC MATTERS ARISING NOT COVERED ELSEWHERE ON THE 

AGENDA 
 
13. TRAC RETURN FOR ACADEMIC YEAR 2015-2016 
 Report of the Principal of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama.  

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 31 - 50) 

 
14. FINANCE REVIEW 
 Report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 51 - 54) 

 
15. RISK REGISTER 
 Report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 55 - 92) 

 
16. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA 

 
Monday, 7 November 2016  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board 
of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama held at Committee Room - 

2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Monday, 7 November 2016 at 1.45 pm 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Christina Coker (Chairman) 
Marianne Fredericks 

Jeremy Simons 
Neil Constable 
 

In Attendance 
 
Officers: 
Gemma Stokley - Town Clerk's Department 

Sarah Wall - Chamberlain's Department 

Cirla Peall - Audit Manager, Chamberlain's Department 

Patsy Carter - Interim Head of Facilities, Guildhall School 

 
1. APOLOGIES  

Apologies for absence were received from the Principal of the Guildhall School 
of Music and Drama and from Deputy John Bennett (Chairman of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama.  
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN  
The Committee proceeded to elect a Deputy Chairman in accordance with 
Standing Order No. 30.  
 
Marianne Fredericks, being the only Governor indicating her willingness to 
serve was duly elected Deputy Chairman for the ensuing year.  
 
RESOLVED – That, Marianne Fredericks be elected to serve as Deputy 
Chairman for the ensuing year.  
 

4. PUBLIC MINUTES  
The public minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2016 were considered and 
approved as a correct record.  
 

5. MATTERS ARISING NOT COVERED ELSEWHERE ON THE AGENDA  
Outstanding Actions 
The Deputy Chairman suggested that the Committee should list any 
outstanding actions going forward and list these as a separate agenda item 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



with due dates assigned to them so that they could be easily tracked going 
forward.  
 
The Committee were supportive of this proposal and asked that the Town Clerk 
produce this list for all future Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings.  
 
Internal Audit Update Report (page 2) – The Chairman highlighted that, due 
to an oral update being omitted,  the information reported by internal audit to 
the last meeting of the Committee was inaccurate regarding the number of live 
amber recommendations at that time. She clarified that, at 28 July 2016, there 
were nine live amber priority recommendations (including one relating to 
‘Principal Studies’). 
 

6. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT  
The Committee received a report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management providing an update on Internal Audit activity undertaken at the 
Guildhall School since the last report made in July 2016. 
 
The Chairman asked the Committee to focus first on outstanding 
implementation of audit recommendations. 
 
The Audit Manager tabled a document detailing movement of live, high priority 
(all amber) recommendations from July to November 2016. There were five 
such recommendations for the School to progress and a further 
recommendation which is the responsibility of City Procurement to implement. 
She undertook to provide similar ‘tracking’ information to all future meetings of 
this Committee.  
 
The Committee was informed that, since its July meeting, there had been a 
corporate follow up exercise focusing on all high (i.e. red or amber) priority 
recommendations that were due for implementation by 30 September 2016. 
The Audit Manager confirmed that seven of the nine live amber 
recommendations fell into this category. Of the seven, four had been confirmed 
as fully implemented and revised target dates agreed for full implementation of 
the remaining three – ‘Coding of Purchases’ (part implemented), ‘Disaster 
Recovery Site’ (not implemented), and ‘Tape Storage’ (part implemented).  
 
It was noted that the ‘Strategic Information Technology Services (SITS) – 
Disaster Recovery (DR) Site’ and ‘Tape Storage’ recommendations are linked. 
The Group Accountant reported that some testing of various cloud based 
solutions for tape storage had taken place but a firm decision had yet to be 
made. The Chairman reported that she was concerned that these two 
recommendation areas dated back to August 2015 and requested an update 
from officers on the action taken to date before the next Committee meeting as 
well as an assurance that the January 2017 target date would be met.  
 
The Committee noted that the two recommendations concerning Milton Court 
had not been assigned any firm timescales for completion. They noted that the 
PA Consulting Review, due to report to the Board of Governors next week, 
would impact on this area of work. The Group Accountant confirmed the 

Page 2



difficulty of considering Milton Court in isolation given that it was just one of the 
School’s operational buildings. She added that the Board no longer received 
separate reports on Milton Court costs but that officers were, however, able to 
identify separately the associated costs if necessary.  The Chairman agreed 
that the recommendations in this area should be reconciled with the outcomes 
of the PA Consulting Review.  
 
It was also noted that, one of two recommendations relating to ‘Compliance 
with Corporate Procurement Contracts’ had been implemented in terms of the 
School’s actions, however some action on the other recommendation 
(responsibility of City Procurement) is outstanding. The full implementation 
target for this recommendation has been revised from mid-April 2016 to the end 
of March 2017. The Committee agreed, therefore, that this matter continue to 
be reported to the Committee until closure. 
 
The Committee then went on to discuss the schedule of Internal Audit Projects 
for 2016-17. With regard to ‘Succession Planning’, the Audit Manager reported 
that she would be meeting with the School tomorrow to plan this and was 
confident that it could then move to audit fieldwork stage relatively quickly 
thereafter. The Audit Manager went on to report that Internal Audit had met with 
the Group Accountant to discuss progressing the other three projects and the 
Principal’s input would be encouraged for scoping these.  
 
In response to a question about the likelihood of completing all four projects in 
2016-17, the Audit Manager reported that it was intended that all would be 
completed by the end of the academic, rather than financial, year.  
 
In relation to the planned project around ‘Satellite Site Operations’, the 
Chairman highlighted that this was significant in terms of potential risk and 
stressed the importance of ensuring no slippage on this project.  
 
The Chairman concluded by stating that she very much welcomed the closer 
relationship being fostered between Internal Audit and Risk Management. 
 
RESOLVED – That, Governors note the status of planned audit work for 2016-
17 and the outcome of formal recommendations follow-up activity since the last 
Internal Audit Report in July 2016. 
 

7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no additional, urgent items of business for consideration.  
 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 

Page 3



defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
as follows:- 
 

Item Paragraph 

13-18 3 

19 2 & 3 

 
10. NON PUBLIC MINUTES  

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2016 were considered 
and approved as a correct record.  
 

11. NON-PUBLIC MATTERS ARISING NOT COVERED ELSEWHERE ON THE 
AGENDA  
The Committee discussed matters arising from the minutes of the last meeting 
held on 28 July 2016.  
 

12. HEFCE ANNUAL ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN 2016  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer in 
relation to the 2016 Annual Accountability Return documents for consideration 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

13. HEFCE ACCOUNTS DIRECTION FOR 2016/17  
The Committee received a report of the Principal of the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama referring to the Accounts Direction for 2016/17. 
  
 

14. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer 
detailing the financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2016. 
 

15. AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  
The Committee considered their Annual Report prior to its submission to the 
Board of Governors. 
 

16. GUILDHALL SCHOOL 'ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS' 
UPDATE  
The Committee received a report of the Principal of the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama summarising the arrangements currently in place to achieve 
best value for money and the initiatives being undertaken to improve them.  
 

17. FINANCE REVIEW  
The Committee received a late, separately circulated, report of the Principal of 
the Guildhall School of Music and Drama detailing the School’s Finance Review 
for Period 2 of the Academic Year 2016/17. 
 

18. RISK REGISTER  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Operating and Financial Officer 
providing assurances that risk management procedures in place within the 
School are satisfactory and meet the requirements of the corporate Risk 
Management Framework.  

Page 4



 
19. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 

THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions raised in the non-public session.  
 

20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no additional, urgent items of business for consideration in the non-
public session.  
 

21. SAFEGUARDING UPDATE  
The Chairman and Deputy Chairman informed the Committee of a current 
Safeguarding issue. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 3.50 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Gemma Stokley  
tel. no.: 020 7332 1407 
gemma.stokley@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama  
 

Outstanding Actions Log 
 

Item Date Action 
Officer 

responsible 

To be 
completed/ 

progressed to 
next stage 

Progress Update 

1. 7/11/2016 Student Catering (including Student Bar) 
Audit review of the Bar alongside a 
review of student catering across the 
campus due to report back to ARM 
Committee and to the Board of 
Governors 

Internal 
Audit/Principal 

Summer 2017 Last update provided at July 
2016 ARM Committee 
meeting.  

2. 7/11/2016 Milton Court 
Setting of rental/hire costs at start of 
financial year. Officers to provide 
information regarding how these 
compare to competitors’ rates. 
 

Chief 
Operating and 
Financial 
Officer 

Early 2017 Officers undertook to provide 
this going forward at July 
2016 ARM Committee 
meeting. 

3. 7/11/2016 Sundial Court 
Committee requested Internal Audit to 
consider Sundial Court (Red risk), with 
regard to decision-making processes.       

Internal 
Audit/City 
Surveyor 

2017 The Committee agreed, 
following a proposal from the 
Deputy Chairman, that this 
should be added to the 
Outstanding Actions List at 
their meeting on 7/11/2016. 

4. 7/11/2016 Staff Recruitment and Retention 
The Committee noted that this was still 
recorded as work in progress and 
requested an update regarding the key 
objectives around this risk alongside a 
realistic timescale and any actions 
already taken to date.    
 

Principal January 2017 
meeting of the 
ARM Committee 
(20/1/2017) 

Chairman requested this at 
the ARM Committee meeting 
on 7/11/2016. 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



 

 

Item Date Action 
Officer 

responsible 

To be 
completed/ 

progressed to 
next stage 

Progress Update 

5. 7/11/2016 Failure to Engage Benefactors and 
Alumni 
The Chairman requested that an update 
be given to the next meeting of this 
Committee setting out how the 
presentation of the Graham-Pelton 
planning study report was received by 
both the SMT and the Trustees of the 
Guildhall School Trust.       
 

Principal January 2017 
meeting of the 
ARM Committee 
(20/1/2017) 

Chairman requested this at 
the ARM Committee meeting 
on 7/11/2016. 

6. 7/11/2016 Development of IT Pedagogy Fails to 
Keep Pace with Competition 
The Chairman asked for an update as to 
take up of the IT Training and Learning 
opportunities made available to staff. 
 

Principal ASAP Chairman requested this at 
the ARM Committee meeting 
on 7/11/2016. 

 

P
age 8



 

 

Committee: Date: 

Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and 
Drama Board 

 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama   

14th November 2016 

 

 

20th January 2017 

Subject:  

Internal Audit Annual Report  

Public 

 

Report of: 

Head of Audit and Risk Management 

For Information 

Report Author: 

Pat Stothard, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 

 
Summary 

 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the HEFCE Code of Practice for 
Accountability and Audit. It provides your committee with details of the Internal Audit 
work undertaken at the School during the academic year ended 31st July 2016 with 
the intention of providing you with an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the School’s arrangements for internal control. 
 
It is the Head of Audit and Risk Management’s opinion that, based on the audit work 
undertaken during 2015/16, the School’s systems of risk management, control and 
governance, and economy, effectiveness and efficiency are generally robust and 
can be reasonably relied upon to ensure that objectives are achieved. Internal audit 
report summaries are circulated to Members when main audit reviews are finalised 
and management action plans agreed.   
 
Delivery of the 2016-17 audit plan is on-going and work is underway to ensure that  
The plan will be delivered by 31st July 2017. 
 
There were nine live amber priority recommendations at the end of the 2015-16 
academic year.  Internal Audit follow-up work has confirmed that as at the end of 
October 2016 there are five live amber priority recommendations for the School to 
action and a further amber priority recommendation which is the responsibility of the 
City Corporation to progress.  These recommendations are being addressed by 
Management. 
 
Recommendation 

 Members are asked to note the work that internal audit have undertaken and 
offer any observations. 

 

 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Main Report 

 
Background 

 
1. Internal Audit plays a role in providing the required assurance on internal controls 

using a risk-based planning process, informed by the identified key risks, 
strategic and operational objectives, to identify the key auditable areas to 
establish a three-year plan, with key auditable areas being reviewed annually. 
This is reinforced by consultation with the School’s Audit and Risk Management 
Committee, the Principal and members of the School’s management team on 
perceived risk, any areas of concern and a follow-up audit regime. 

 
2. The Internal Audit Section operates, in all aspects, in accordance with the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards, revised and published in April 2016.  The work of 
Internal Audit is relied upon by HEFCE’s Audit Service, and informs the work of 
the City of London Corporation’s external auditors. 

 
3. The Committee receives a report on an annual basis from the Head of Internal 

Audit and Risk management on the extent that the School can rely on its systems 
of internal control and to provide reasonable assurance that the School’s 
objectives will be achieved efficiently.  Annually in January the Committee 
considers the audit plan for the following year and the three year audit strategy, 
focusing on coverage of the School’s key operations.  Additionally regular Internal 
Audit Update reports are received by this Committee containing a summary of 
outcomes for finalised audits. 

 
4. The School’s main accounting and payroll systems are provided by the City of 

London Corporation. These systems are subject to review by the Internal Audit 
Section and at the time of audit were considered by both Internal Audit and the 
City’s external auditors to provide a high level of internal control.   

 
5. This report includes a summary of audit findings for reviews undertaken during 

the Academic Year 1st September 2015 to 31st July 2016.  
 
Current Position 
 
Internal Audit Plan and Annual Opinion 2015-16  
 
6. The Internal Audit Plan for 2015-16 is complete and a summary of the findings of 

the work completed for the Academic Year September 2015 – July 2016, which 
have informed the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management’s opinion, can be 
found in Appendix 1. 

 
7. The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management’s opinion is that the Guildhall 

School’s systems of risk management, control and governance, and 
economy, effectiveness and efficiency are generally robust and can be 
reasonably relied upon to ensure that objectives are achieved. 

 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

Internal Audit Plan 2016-17  
 
8. Whilst no reports have been finalised to date, a follow-up exercise has been 

completed recently to determine the implementation of high (red and amber) 
priority recommendations.  Terms of reference have been prepared for an audit of 
Succession Planning, Talent Management and Staff Development, and detailed 
planning is underway in respect of audits on Income Generation, Strategic 
Planning and Satellite Site Operations – taking into account the findings of the 
Operating Model Review. 

 
Audit recommendation follow-up reviews 
 
9. At the end of the 2015-16 academic year there were nine live amber priority 

recommendations which were for the School to address and no outstanding red 
priority recommendations.  A recent follow up exercise which looked at high 
(amber in this case) priority recommendations due for implementation by 30th 
September 2016 identified that there were seven such recommendations relating 
to the School which were due for follow-up.  Two further recommendations were 
not yet due for implementation.  
 

10.  As at the end of October 2016 and based on audit examination of evidence as 
part of the follow-up exercise there are five live amber priority recommendations 
which are due for implementation by the School and a further live amber priority 
recommendation related to the School which is the responsibility of the City 
Corporation (City Procurement) to address, as follows: 

 

Audit Area Status 

Procurement 
 

Management Information City Procurement action 
outstanding 

Coding of Purchases Partially implemented 

Strategic 
Information 
Technology 
Services 

Disaster Recovery Site Not implemented 

Tape Storage Partially implemented 

Milton Court 
 

Business Plan Update Implementation timescale 
to be confirmed Calculation of Costs for Staging 

Conferences and Artistic Events 

   
11. Revised timescales for implementation have been agreed for four of these 

recommendations and Internal Audit is liaising with the recommendation owner to 
determine the progress in the remaining area (Milton Court) which was expected 
to be impacted by the Operating Model Review. 

 
Conclusion 

 
12. A positive Head of Audit and Risk Management annual opinion has been 

provided. 
 
13. The 2016-17 internal audit plan is in progress and due for completion by the end 

31st July 2017. 

Page 11



 

 

 
Appendices 
 

 Appendix 1 -  Schedule of Internal Audit Planned Work 2015-16 
 
 
Contact: Pat Stothard, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management  
E: Pat.stothard@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 12



Appendix 1 
 

Schedule of Guildhall School Internal Audit Projects 2015-16 
 

   Recommendations  

Project Status Assurance 
Rating 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Full Assurance Reviews 

Milton Court  

The Milton Court building opened in September 2013. 
Facilities are open to hire from external organisations 
in order to maximise income and make best use of 
these facilities.  This review examined the process for 
setting rental and hire charges, maximising bookings to 
complement School tuition and concert activities, and 
cost recoupment. 

 
 
 

 
Complete 

 
 
 
 

Moderate 

 
 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
 

2 

 
 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
 

2 

Procurement of Good and Services  

The creation of the City of London Procurement 
Service (CLPS) affected the way in which the School 
sources goods and services as well as process orders 
and payments. This review will looked at those revised 
arrangements and seek assurance on the sustained 
integrity of the internal control environment. 

 
 

Complete 

 
 

Moderate 

 
 
- 

 
 

2 

 
 

1 

 
 

3 

Satellite Operations 
 
A review of governance arrangements and assessment 
of the adequacy of the control framework in respect of 
the satellite operations. 

 
 

Deferred until 2016-17 and 
replaced by Principal 

Studies at the Principal’s 
request 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

P
age 13



   Recommendations  

Project Status Assurance 
Rating 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Principal Studies 
 
An evaluation of the adequacy of controls in place in 
respect of Principal Studies contract arrangements, 
delivery of tuition and payments to professors. 

 
 

Final Report 

  
 
- 

 
 

2 

 
 

2 

 
 

4 

Spot Check Reviews 
      

Annual Enrolment  
 
This is an annual review which examines the controls 
exercised over the process for enrolling students.  

 
 

Cancelled in discussion with 
the Chairman of Audit and 
Risk Management 
Committee, the School’s 
Principal and the Head of 
Finance in recognition of a 
relatively recent audit of this 
area (finalised in October 
2015) which resulted in a 
single green priority 
recommendation. 

  
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 TOTAL - 6 3 9 

 

P
age 14



Committee: Date: 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama 

20th January 2017 

Subject:  

Internal Audit Update Report 

Public 

Report of: 

Head of Audit and Risk Management 

For Information 

 

Report Author: 

Pat Stothard, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management   

 
Summary 

This report provides an update on Internal Audit activity undertaken at the Guildhall 
School since the last report made in November 2016.   

Delivery of 2016-17 planned audits is in progress after having been delayed initially 
to await the outcome of the Guildhall School Operating Model Review; the plan 
status is outlined at Appendix 1.  Fieldwork is in progress for the audit of 
Succession Planning, Talent Management and Staff Development and consultation 
is underway on the terms of reference for the audit of Satellite Site Operations. 
There has been liaison between Internal Audit and Guildhall School management as 
part of the planning for audit work in respect of Income Generation and Strategic 
Planning and deferral of both reviews is proposed.  
 
At the time of the last Committee there were six live amber priority 
recommendations and no live red priority recommendations; five of these were 
for the School to implement and one was the responsibility of the City 
Corporation to progress. As at the end of December 2016 this has reduced to 
four live amber priority recommendations as detailed at Appendix 2.  This 
movement reflects full implementation of one recommendation and advice 
received from Guildhall School management that a further recommendation 
has been superseded. There are no outstanding red priority recommendations. 

This report also includes the Draft Internal Audit Plan 2017- 20 for consideration.  
Members’ views are sought on the proposed consultation with the incoming 
Principal, together with the proposed coverage and timing (Appendix 3). 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to note the status of planned audit work for 2016-17, 
the live high priority recommendations position and audit plan proposals 
for 2017-20.   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



Main Report 
 

Background 
 
1. This report provides an update on audit work progressed since 7th November 

2016 Committee.  The status of planned 2016-17 is outlined at Appendix 1.  
Internal Audit has liaised with Guildhall School management to determine 
appropriate timing and coverage of planned audits of Strategic Planning and 
Income Generation.  Deferral of both of these audits to 2017/18 is proposed in 
recognition of the role of the new Principal in taking forward the recommendations 
of the Operating Model Review, after which the scope of the audits will be agreed.   

 
2. Recommendation follow-up enquiries have identified that there are three live 

amber priority recommendations awaiting implementation by the School and a 
further amber priority recommendation for which the City Corporation is owner 
(Appendix 2). There are no live red priority recommendations at the end of 
December 2016.  

3. An initial draft audit plan 2017-20 (Appendix 3) has been prepared using a risk-
focused approach, building on the plan as presented to this Committee in January 
2016 and taking into account feedback received from Members at that time.  The 
Principal is currently undertaking a thorough review of the GSMD risk register, the 
outcome of which should feed into the Audit planning process.  This is due to be 
completed for the handover to the new Principal.  Internal Audit are keen to obtain 
the input of the new Principal to the forward plan.  

 
Delivery of Internal Audit Work 

 
4. The status of the 2016 – 17 audit plan is outlined at Appendix 1. Delivery of two 

audits – Income Generation and Strategic Planning - was delayed earlier this year 
pending the outcome of the Guildhall School Operating Model Review.  Recent 
consultation with Guildhall School management has highlighted that it may be 
beneficial to defer both of these audits to allow the new Principal to take forward 
the recommendations of the Review. 
 

5. Audit fieldwork is in progress in respect of Succession Planning, Talent 
Management and Staff Development.  The scope of work encompasses 
examination of any arrangements in operation for the following:     

 

 Talent Management Strategy – a documented set of talent management 
principles and priorities to guide practices.  Talent management plans and 
strategic plans are aligned. 
 

 Talent Metrics - key workforce metrics and targets to inform decision-making 
related to talent management.  Metrics could include employee engagement 
and retention, promotions, turnover of high performers, and staff performance.  
 

 Workforce Planning -  identification of high impact and difficult to fill positions 
and determination of demand for talent based on strategic priorities, medium 
and long term business plans, as well as anticipated staff turnover.  

Page 16



 

 Succession Planning - a formal succession planning programme for 
leadership positions and other high impact and difficult to fill positions, 
including mechanisms for identifying and developing potential successors.  
 

 Staff Development - Organisation-wide learning programmes and clear 
oversight.  Implementation of raining and development plans to ensure that 
staff skills and competencies are updated and enhanced in accordance with 
operational requirements and professional development needs. 

 
6. Detailed scoping of the audit of Satellite Site Operations is underway with input 

from the Director: Guildhall Young Artists (Centre for Young Musicians), at the 
Principal’s request.  It is anticipated that audit fieldwork will commence in January 
2017. 

 
Other Relevant Assurance Work  
 
7. Delivery of the plan of corporate and key systems reviews across the City’s’ 

departments is on-going, providing assurance over a range of arrangements 
relevant to the Guildhall School.  No applicable corporate audits have been 
finalised since the last meeting of this Committee. In future summary audit 
outcomes will be reported to this Committee where appropriate, including the 
detail of any recommendations made directly in respect of the Guildhall School. 
 

Implementation of Audit Recommendations 
 
8. As at the end of December 2016, there are no live red priority recommendations 

and recent follow up enquiries have identified a reduction in outstanding 
recommendations from six at the time of the last Committee to four at the time of 
writing.    

 
9. The two recommendations that are no longer live relate to SITS Tape Storage 

(implementation confirmed) and Milton Court Business Plan which the School’s 
management have advised is superseded.  Issues relating to tape storage have 
been addressed by the backing up of data to Amazon Web Services.  The 
Principal advised that Milton Court has been integrated within the overall estates 
and facilities budget and as such there will not be a separate business plan; this 
is understood to reflect the direction of travel recommended as part of the 
Operating Model Review,  

 
10. Live recommendation details are shown in Appendix 2 and reflect that one of the 

recommendations affects the School but is the responsibility of the City 
Corporation to implement by the target date of 31st March 2017.  Guildhall School 
recommendation owners have advised of implementation in three cases and as at 
the end of December 2016 the supply of evidence of full implementation is 
awaited.  Internal Audit will continue to liaise with all recommendation owners to 
determine the progress of implementation of outstanding issues, closing down the 
recommendations upon receipt of appropriate evidence.   

 

Page 17



Internal Audit Plan 2016-17 
 
11. The Internal Audit Plan 2016-17 (Appendix 1) is aligned to the Guildhall School’s 

strategic objectives and is flexible in response to emerging priorities.  The 
School’s management have recommended deferral of two audits pending the 
arrival of the new Principal, subject to the agreement of this Committee.  There 
remains, however, a strong focus on delivery of audit work by the end of the 
2016-17 academic year in support of the annual report HEFCE Code of Practice 
for Accountability and Audit. 

 
Audit Plan Proposals 2017 - 2020 
 
12. The Draft Internal Audit Plan covering the three year period 1st April 2017 to 31st 

March 2020 (Appendix 3) has been prepared using a risk-focused approach and 
taking into account recent feedback from this Committee and the GSMD Board of 
Governors. The Principal is currently undertaking a thorough review of the GSMD 
risk register, the outcome of which should feed into the Audit planning process.  
This is due to be completed in time for the handover to the new Principal.  It is 
proposed that input be sought from the new Principal following a suitable 
induction period, to ensure that audit coverage ties in with any revised business 
plans, including plans for taking forward the recommendations of the Operating 
Model Review.  Comment and suggestions for consideration in future audit 
coverage are sought from your Committee Members. 
 

Conclusion 
 
13. Audit fieldwork and / or detailed planning is in progress for two 2016-17 audits 

and deferral of the remaining two audits is under active consideration pending the 
arrival of the new Principal.  Decisions regarding Internal Audit coverage for the 
2016-17 academic year will take into account HEFCE requirements as reflected 
in the Code of Practice for Accountability and Audit.    
 

12. There are no live red priority recommendations at as the end of December 2016 
and there are four live amber priority recommendations.  Evidence of 
implementation is awaited in respect of three of these and recommendations will 
be closed down upon receipt.  Internal Audit will continue to liaise with 
recommendation owners, updating Members of this Committee accordingly. 
 

13. Audit plan proposals for 2017-2020 have been developed using a risk focused 
approach and it is intended that plan consultation be extended to incorporate 
input from the new Principal.  

 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 Internal Audit Plan Status 2016-17  
Appendix 2 Live Amber Priority Recommendations – movement between November 
and December 2016 
Appendix 3 Draft Audit Plan 2017-2020 
 
Pat Stothard, Head of Audit and Risk Management 
E: Pat.Stothard@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 18



APPENDIX 1 
 

Schedule of Internal Audit Projects 2016-17 
 

    Recommendations  

Project Planned 
Days 

Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Strategic Planning 

This audit will focus on the processes for review and 
revision of the strategic plan, ensuring that 
appropriate governance arrangements are in place 
for scrutiny, approval and supporting execution of 
the plan. 

 
 

10 

 
 

Proposed 
Deferral to 
2017/18 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

Succession Planning 

This is a priority for the school, where significant 
work in the area has been undertaken.  Audit 
coverage would include reviewing processes in 
place to ensure the strategic aim is delivered and 
the mechanisms used to monitor the achievement of 
the key priority.  To include identifying and nurturing 
talent / professional development. 

 
 

10 

 
 

Fieldwork 
in 

Progress 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

Income Generation 

Maximising income from grant funding, student fees 
and other income is a priority for the school.  This 
review will look at the strategy for maximisation and 
a sample of sources of income to ensure it is 
received in full. 

 
 

10 

 
 

Proposed 
Deferral to 
2017/18 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

P
age 19



    Recommendations  

Project Planned 
Days 

Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Satellite Site Operations 

This review has been carried forward from the 2015-
16 plan and will look at the governance 
arrangements and assess the adequacy of the 
control framework in respect of the satellite 
operations.  Two further CYM satellites are planned 
for 2016-17 and it is intended that the audit will take 
place once 5 or 6 are in place in total. 
 

 
 

15 

 
 

Terms of 
Reference 
Developed 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

TOTAL 45 
      

 

P
age 20



APPENDIX 2 

Movement of live high (amber) priority recommendations November to December 2016  

 

Audit No. Area  

 

Status as at 

November 2016 

Committee 

Status as at January 

2017 Committee 

Target 

Date 

 

Live Recs – 

Guildhall 

School to 

action 

Live Rec 

- COL to 

action 

Procurement 

  

1 Compliance with Corporate 

Procurement Contracts – 

management information 

School’s action 

complete 

COL action not yet due 

School’s action 

complete 

COL action not yet due 

31/03/17   1 

2 Coding of Purchases Partially Implemented Evidence of full 

implementation 

awaited 

30/11/16 1  

SITS 3 Disaster Recovery Site Not Implemented Evidence of full 

implementation 

awaited 

31/10/16 1  

4 Tape Storage Partially Implemented Implementation 

confirmed 

N/A   

Milton Court 5 Business Plan Update Not yet due Superseded N/A   

6 Calculation of Costs for Staging 

Conferences and Artistic Events 

Not yet due Evidence of full 

implementation 

awaited 

Not 

provided 

1  

 Number of Live Recommendations 6 4  3 1 

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 22



APPENDIX 3 
 

Internal Audit Plan 2017-18 
 

 

Audit Title Rationale 

Strategic Planning This review has been carried forward from the 2016-17 
plan and will focus on the processes for revision and 
revision, including governance arrangements for scrutiny 
and plan approval. 

Income Generation This review has been carried forward from the 2016-17 
plan.  Maximising income from grant funding, student fees 
and other income is a priority for the school. This review 
will look at the strategy use to ensure income is maximised 
and a sample of sources of income to ensure it is received 
in full. 

Student Support Scope to be confirmed. 

Sundial Court Project 
Governance 

Scope to be confirmed. 

Data Quality Scope to be confirmed in light of issues arising in relation 
to reporting of FTEs which impacted on grant funding. 

 

 
 

Internal Audit 3 Year Strategy 
 

 

Audit Title 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Strategic Planning     

Income Generation     

Sundial Court Project Governance     

Budget Setting and Financial Management     

Student Support     

Facilities Management and Maintenance      

Asset Management and Register     

Enrolment     

Professional Services     

Data Quality     

Taught Degree Awarding Powers     

Enhancement of Student Offer     
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	5 Outstanding Actions Report
	6 Internal Audit Annual Report
	Guildhall School 2015-16 Schedule of Audit Reviews - Appendix 1 Nov 16

	7 Internal Audit Update Report
	2016_17 Schedule of Audit Reviews - Appendix 1_Jan 2017 report
	Movement of live high priority recommendations for Jan 2017 Committee
	2017-18 Plan and 3 yr strategy - Appendix 3_Jan 17 report

	11 Non Public Minutes
	13 TRAC Return for Academic Year 2015-2016
	Copy of TRAC1516_10007825 new

	14 Finance Review
	15 Risk Register
	GSMDDetailedriskregister 060117


